
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Wednesday, July 16th, 2025, at 8:30 AM 

Hollingsworth Board Room 
1212 George Jenkins Blvd, Lakeland, FL 33815 

AGENDA 

Action Required 

Call to Order 

1. Approval of the June 10th Citrus Connection Meeting Approval 

2. Public Comments None 

3. Late Night Squeeze Update None 

4. Finance / Rhonda Carter, Chief Financial Officer
a. LAMTD Financials None 
b. PCTS Financials None 
c. TD Financials None 
d. Resolution #25-19 Approval 
e. Resolution #25-20 Approval 
f. Proposed FY 2025-26 Millage Rate / Certificate

of Taxable Value and Set Public Hearings for FY 2025-26 Approval 
g. Administrative Vehicles Approval 
h. Procurement Policy Update Approval 
i. Amendment to LAMTD Standard of Conduct Approval 

5. Legal / Ben Darby, Esq
a. Polk State College UAP Agreement Approval 
b. Annual Certifications and Assurances Approval 

6. Marketing / Kendra Brown and Felicia McCleary
a. Social Media Update None 

7. General Manager Report / Tom Phillips
a. Agency Update(s) None 

8. Executive Informational Summary / Tom Phillips
a. June Calendar None 
b. Ridership and UAP Update None 

9. Other Business TBD 

Adjournment 

1



CITRUS CONNECTION 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Wednesday, July 16th, 2025 
AGENDA ITEM #1 

Agenda Item: Approval of the Citrus Connection Meeting Minutes for 
June 10th, 2025 

Presenter: Ella Joseph 

Policy Analysis: TA 6 Increase internal communication through systemic 
processes. 

Recommended 
Action: Board approval of the Citrus Connection Meeting 

Minutes for June 10th, 2025  

Attachments: June 10th, 2025, Citrus Connection Meeting Minutes 

2



CITRUS CONNECTION 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Wednesday, July 16th, 2025 
AGENDA ITEM #3a 

Agenda Item: Late Night Squeeze Update 

Presenter: Tom Phillips, General Manager 

Recommended 
Action: None 

Summary: Building on the success of “Leave the Keys, Ride the 
Squeeze”, the opportunity to support downtown businesses, 
nearby hotels, and the growing need for affordable late-night 
transportation among college students, Citrus Connection is 
launching the Late-Night Squeeze service on August 22, 2025. 

In consultation with the LDDA, the Chamber of Commerce, and 
Florida State College, this service will offer safe, reliable rides 
for over 9000 students and visitors during evening hours. 

Based on FSC’s current Uber/Lyft contract ridership data, we 
anticipate a 20% increase in ridership once the Squeeze service 
begins. To support this, a Squeeze Plus vehicle will be made 
available during inclement weather to meet demand.  

The total annual cost of this project is $46,226, which will cover 
two operators, one supervisor, and all vehicle fuel and 
maintenance expenses. 

3



   
CITRUS CONNECTION 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Wednesday, July 16th, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM #4a 

 
 

 
 
Agenda Item: FY2024-25 
 LAMTD Monthly Financial Statement 
 For the period ending April 30, 2025  
 
Presenter: Rhonda Carter, Chief Financial Officer 
  
Recommended  
Action: None. 
 
Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less 

than one year. The report is used to convey the 
performance of the district’s financial position and 
budget comparisons – budget to actual on a year-to-date 
basis. Unlike annual financial statements, Interim 
Statements do not have to be audited. 

 
 Interim financial statements increase communication 

between the District Board of Directors, management, 
and the public to provide up-to-date financial 
information and compliance with the budget. 

 
Attachments: See attachments 
 
  
 
  
  
 
 
  
   
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

4



Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

For the April 2025 
FY 2024-2025 

 
 
 

  Year-to-Date Summary 

Description Percent of FY 
Compleat Annual Budget Actual Actual % of FY 

Annual Budget 
 

Revenue YTD 100% $15,807,667 $10,683,785 67.6% 
 

Expenses YTD 100% $15,807,667 $9,277,381 58.7%  

 
 
 
REVENUES: 
 
The total revenues realized through April 30, 2025, totaled $10.6 M or 67.6% of the annual budget. 
 

• Farebox revenues reflect $157K or 44% of the annual budgeted revenues. 
 

• Interest Income on Investment income totals $376K. This represents interest in income in our SBA 
reserve account. 

 
• FDOT annual operating grants are $1M or 60% of the annual budget.  

 
• FTA Section 5307 operating grants are $875K or 19% of the annual budget.  

   
• Advertising income is $97K, or 62% of the total planned revenue. 

 
• The PCTS support cost reimbursement revenue is $359K or 58% of annual budget. 

 
• All the other revenues are within the annual budget. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

5



Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

For the April 2025 
FY 2024-2025 

 
 
EXPENSES: 
 
The total expenses year-to-date through April 30, 2025, totaled $9.2 million or 58.7% of the annual budget. 
 

• Salaries and benefits cost are $6.7M, or 57% of the annual budget.  
 

• Fuel and lubricants expenses totaled $339K, or 51% of the annual budget. 
 

• Materials and supplies totaled $414K, or 64.4% of the annual budget. 
 

• Insurance expenses are $379K, or 60% of the annual budget. 
 
• Property appraiser/Tax Collector Commission are quarterly advance payments.  

 
• Debt service of $77K pertains to the lease purchase of buses and 58% of the annual budget. 

 
• All other expenses are within the annual budget.  

 
 
 
 

CHANGE IN FINANCIAL CONDITION 
Based on the annual YTD budget-to-actual through April 30th, the financials reflect a favorable variance of $1.4 M with 
58% of the fiscal year completed. 

 
 

 
 

  STATISTICAL TRENDS LAST FIVE YEARS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 9/30/24 9/30/23 9/30/22 9/30/21 9/30/20 
1.  Farebox Recovery Ratio (All modes)   6.5% 6.9% 8.7% 9.7% 9.3% 
2.  Cost per revenue hour                               $125.34 $161.12 $141.63 $130.01 $117.66 
3.  Revenue Hours                                           149,965 142,860 132,260 135,115 146,700 
4.  Fuel Cost ($)                                         $1,382,599 $1,562,003 $1,399,855 $878,132 $744,587 
5.  Ridership                                                   874,550 848,241 693,018 631,000 855,407 

 

6



Annual Budget YTD Actural  Percent Expended 
PCTS - Support Cost Reimb. 615,472.00                        359,023.00                                        58.3%
Other Contract Revenue 147,780.00                        266,065.00                                        180.0%
Farebox/Pass Sales 352,000.00                        157,338.98                                        44.7%
Miscellaneous Income                    60,600.00                           110,359.78                                        182.1%
Contract Income (UAP) 134,400.00                        74,370.25                                           55.3%
Advertising Revenue                     156,000.00                        97,066.68                                           62.2%
Investment Income                       795,700.00                        376,601.03                                        47.3%
Operating Grant - FDOT                  1,664,829.00                    1,007,862.47                                    60.5%
Operating Grant - Federal               4,438,635.00                    874,539.00                                        19.7%
Gain on Disposal of Asset 2,000.00                              -                                                         0.0%
Squeeze 4,000.00                              45,130.00                                           1128.3%
Ad Valorum Income, net 7,436,251.00                    7,315,428.89                                    98.4%
Total 15,807,667.00                 10,683,785.08                                 67.6%

Annual Budget YTD Actual  Percent Expended 
Salaries 8,392,691.00                    4,570,823.93                                    54.5%
Employee Benefits 3,355,126.00                    2,138,828.63                                    63.7%
Advertising Fees 10,820.00                           4,642.83                                             42.9%
Professional & Technical Ser 398,330.00                        167,065.12                                        41.9%
Contract Maintenance Services 151,950.00                        171,659.97                                        113.0%
Other Services 100,200.00                        75,345.36                                           75.2%
Fuel & Lubricants 668,500.00                        339,800.16                                        50.8%
Freight 10,647.00                           7,519.27                                             70.6%
Repairs & Maintenance 52,600.00                           3,450.90                                             6.6%
Materials & Supplies/SQUEEZE 644,550.00                        414,831.55                                        64.4%
Utilities/Telephone 203,300.00                        126,571.78                                        62.3%
Insurance Expense 637,500.00                        379,398.29                                        59.5%
Dues & Subscriptions 55,150.00                           24,874.41                                           45.1%
Education/Training/Meeting/Travel 185,900.00                        66,672.49                                           35.9%
Service Charges 35,750.00                           13,107.54                                           36.7%
Office Expense 230,400.00                        205,511.17                                        89.2%
Advertising & Promotions 35,000.00                           26,423.40                                           75.5%
Miscellaneous Expenses 287,053.35                        81,602.61                                           28.4%
Property Appraiser/Tax Collector Comm 220,000.00                        201,413.85                                        91.6%
Debt Services 132,200.00                        77,101.36                                           58.3%
Total 15,807,667.35                 9,277,381.27                                    58.7%

Change in Financial Position -                                          1,406,403.81                                    

Revenue

Expenses

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District
Financial Statement

FY24-25
Oct 1, 2024 - September 30, 2025

For the Period Ended April 2025

7



   
CITRUS CONNECTION 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Wednesday, July 16th, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM #4b 

 
 

 
 
Agenda Item: FY2024-25 
 Polk County Transit Services Monthly Financial Statement 
 For the period ending April 30, 2025  
 
Presenter: Rhonda Carter, Chief Financial Officer 
  
Recommended  
Action: None 
 
Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than 

one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the 
district’s financial position and budget comparisons – budget to 
actual on a year-to-date basis. Unlike annual financial 
statements, Interim Statements do not have to be audited. 

 
 Interim financial statements increase communication between 

the District Board of Directors, management, and the public to 
provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with 
the budget. 

 
Attachments: See attachments 
 
  
 
  
  
 
 
  
   
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

8



Polk County Transit Services 
Monthly Financial Report 

YTD April 30, 2025   
FY 2024-2025 

(10/01/24 – 09/30/25) 
 
 

 
 

YTD Summary Annual Budget YTD Actual Percent 
Expended 

Revenues YTD $11,105,400 $7,382,800 66% 

Expenses YTD $11,105,400 $5,354,746 48% 

                                                        
 
 
 
Revenue Highlights: 
 
Operating revenues realized are $7.3M or 66% of the annual budget. 
 
Polk County Contract revenues totaled $4.1M, or 100% of the annual budget. 
 
City Contributions received to date are $711K or 100% of the annual budget 
 
Farebox revenues totaled $27K or 43% of the annual budget. 
 
FDOT grants received to date are $346K or 50% of the annual budget.  
FTA grants received to date are $2M or 47% of the annual budget.  
These grants are paid out retrospectively after expenses are incurred each quarter. 
 
 
Expense highlights 
 
Operating expenses consist of labor costs, operating expenses, and contract expenses. 
 
Total expenses for the period totaled $5.4M or 48% of the annual budget.  
 

• Salaries and wages totaled $2.9M or 54% of the annual budget. 
• Operating expenses totaled $1.3M or 42% of the annual budget. 
• The purchase contract for Transitions Commute Solutions which provides transit services for the 

district totaled $1.1M or 44% of the annual budget. 
 
 
Operating Results 
Actual Revenues exceeded Expenses by 2.0 million. 
 

9



7.0 Months

58% Of Fiscal Year

Annual Budget YTD Actual

Percent 

Expended

County Match 2,715,000$                 2,715,000$              100%

County Contribution - PCTS 1,463,000$                 1,463,000$              100%

City Contribution 711,000$                    711,000$                 100%

Other Revenue Transfer Cares Funding -$                                -$                             0%

Misc Income (insurance proceeds) 228,000$                    665$                        0%

Other Contracts 23,938$                   

Fares 63,200$                      27,415$                   43%

FDOT Grants:

Block 765,000$                    -$                             0%

RURAL 450,000$                    261,508$                 58%

SUNRAIL 240,200$                    84,068$                   35%

Capital- State

FTA

FTA 5307 Grant 3,850,000$                 1,865,500$              48%

Capital -Federal 620,000$                    230,706$                 37%

Capital Contributions - County -$                                -$                             0%

Total 11,105,400$               7,382,800$              66%

Annual Budget YTD Actual

Percent 

Expended

Labor 5,439,450$                 2,924,820$              54%

Contract 2,575,000$                 1,136,745$              44%

Operating 3,090,950$                 1,293,181$              42%

Capital -$                                -$                             0%

Total 11,105,400$               5,354,746$              48%

Change in Financial Position -$                         2,028,054$        

Revenue

Expenses

Polk County Contract

Financial Statement

FY24-25

October 1, 2024 - September 30, 2025

For the Period Ended APRIL 2025

10



   
CITRUS CONNECTION 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Wednesday, July 16th, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM #4c 

 
 

 
 
Agenda Item: FY2024-25 
 Transportation Disadvantaged Monthly Financial Statement 
 For the period ending April 2025  
 
Presenter: Rhonda Carter, Chief Financial Officer 
  
Recommended  
Action: None 
 
Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than 

one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the 
district’s financial position and budget comparisons – budget to 
actual on a year-to-date basis. Unlike annual financial 
statements, Interim Statements do not have to be audited. 

 
 Interim financial statements increase communication between 

the District Board of Directors, management, and the public to 
provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with 
the budget. 

 
 The Transportation Disadvantaged Program fiscal year is July 1 

to June 30. The funding is comprised 90% from the State and 
10% matching funds by Polk County. 

 
Attachments: See attachments 
 
  
 
  
  
 
 
  
   
 
 
 
  
 

11



Transportation Disadvantaged Program 
Month of April 30, 2025 

Percent of FY Reported (83%) 
State FY July 1, 2024 thru June 30, 2025 

 
 

 
Revenues  
 
The revenues totaled $911K or 62% of the annual budget 
 
The TD Trust Fund Grant drawdown reflects $819K or 62% of the grant. 
Contract Revenues and other revenues totaled $67.  
The County funding 10% match totaled $92K or 63% annual budget. 
 
 
Expenses 
 
Operating expenses consist of labor costs, operating, and contract expenses. 
 
Total expenses for the period totaled $1,080K or 74% of the annual budget.  
 
Salaries, wages, and benefits totaled $870K or 81% of the annual Budget. 
Operating expenses totaled $209K or 53% of the annual Budget. 
 
 
Operating Results 
 
Actual expenses exceeded revenues by ($169,421). 

 
 
 

12



Fiscal year month 10.0

% fiscal year 83%

Annual Budget YTD Actual

Percent 

Expended

Revenues 

County Match 10% 146,495$                 92,273$                   63%

Contract Revenue 67$                           67$                           100%

Adult Day Care -$                              

FDOT Grants:

CTD Grant -Operating 1,318,455$             818,748$                 62%

Total 1,465,017$             911,088$                62%

Annual Budget YTD Actual

Percent 

Expended

Labor 1,070,327$             $870,605 81%

Operating 394,690$                 209,903$                 53%

Total 1,465,017$             $1,080,509 74%

(169,421)$            

 

Expenses exceed Revenues by 

169,421$                                   

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District

Transportation Disadvantage Program

Period Ending - April 2025

Revenue

Expenses

Financial Statement

13



   
CITRUS CONNECTION 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Wednesday, July 16th, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM #4d 

 
 

 
 
Agenda Item: Federal Transit Administration Section 5307 and 5339 Winter 

Haven, Large Urban Area Grant Application and Associated 
Resolution for 2025-2026.   

 
Presenter: Rhonda Carter, Chief Financial Officer 
  
Recommended  
Action: Staff recommend approval of 2025/2026 Section 5307 and 5339 

super grant application and corresponding Resolution for the 
purpose of providing operating and capital assistance, in the 
Winter Haven area. 

 
Summary: The 5307 portion of the grant will provide operational 

assistance and the 5339 portion will provide capital assistance 
in the Winter Haven UZA. 

 
 FTA section 5307, the District is requesting $7,320,841 in 

federal funding, which has a local match of $3,281,756 toll 
credits of $252,443 to subsidize the capital operating of the 
match have been requested. 

 
 FTA section 5339, the District is requesting $328,561 in federal 

funding, which has a local match of $65,712 to assist with 
capital equipment. 

 
  If awarded this program will be included in the 2025/2026 

budget 
 
Attachments: Resolution #25-19 

14



 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION GRANT 

APPLICATION FOR TRANSIT PROJECTS 
 

Resolution # 25-19 
 
A RESOLUTION of the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District Board of Directors authorizing the signing and 
submission of a grant application and supporting documents and assurances to the Federal Transit Administration, 
the acceptance of a grant award from the Federal Transit Administration, and the purchase of vehicles and/or 
equipment and/or expenditure of grant funds pursuant to a grant award. 

WHEREAS the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District  has the authority to apply for and accept grants and make 
purchases and/or expend funds pursuant to grant awards made by the Federal Transit Administration as authorized 
by Chapter 341, Florida Statutes and/or by the Federal Transit Administration Act of 1964, as amended. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE Lakeland Area Mass Transit District Board of Directors  FLORIDA: 

This resolution applies to the Federal Program under U.S.C. Section 5307 and 5339 for Winter Haven UZA. 

The submission of a grant application(s), supporting documents, and assurances to the Federal Transit 
Administration is approved. 

Tom Phillips, General Manager is authorized to sign the application, accept a grant award, purchase 
vehicles/equipment and/or expend grant funds pursuant to a grant award, unless specifically rescinded. 

 

DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 16th DAY OF JULY 2025 

By 
 
 
 

Signature, Chairperson of the Board 

Commissioner Sara Roberts McCarley, Board Chair 
 

ATTEST: 

Ella Joseph, Executive Assistant 

15



   
CITRUS CONNECTION 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Wednesday, July 16th, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM #4e 

 
 

 
 
Agenda Item: Federal Transit Administration Section 5307 and 5339 

Lakeland, Large Urban Area Grant Application and 
Associated Resolution for 2025-2026.   

 
Presenter: Rhonda Carter, Chief Financial Officer 
  
Recommended  
Action: Staff recommend approval of 2025/2026 Section 5307 and 5339 

super grant application and corresponding Resolution for the 
purpose of providing operating and capital assistance, in the 
Lakeland area. 

 
Summary: The 5307 portion of the grant will provide operating assistance 

and the 5339 portion will provide capital assistance in the 
Lakeland UZA. 

 
 FTA section 5307, the District is requesting $7,675,785 in 

federal funding, which has a local match of $3,440,869. Toll 
credits $264,682 to subsidize the capital operating match have 
been requested. 

 
 FTA section 5339, the District is requesting $347,617 in federal 

funding, which has a local match of $69,524 to assist with 
capital equipment. 

 
  If awarded this program will be included in the 2025/2026 

budget 
 
Attachments: Resolution #25-20 

16



 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION GRANT APPLICATION 

FOR TRANSIT PROJECTS 
 

Resolution # 25-20 

 

A RESOLUTION of the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District Board of Directors authorizing the signing and submission 
of a grant application and supporting documents and assurances to the Federal Transit Administration, the acceptance 
of a grant award from the Federal Transit Administration, and the purchase of vehicles and/or equipment and/or 
expenditure of grant funds pursuant to a grant award. 

WHEREAS the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District  has the authority to apply for and accept grants and make 
purchases and/or expend funds pursuant to grant awards made by the Federal Transit Administration as authorized by 
Chapter 341, Florida Statutes and/or by the Federal Transit Administration Act of 1964, as amended. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE Lakeland Area Mass Transit District Board of Directors  FLORIDA: 

This resolution applies to the Federal Program under U.S.C. Section 5307 and 5339 for Lakeland UZA. 

The submission of a grant application(s), supporting documents, and assurances to the Federal Transit Administration 
is approved. 

Tom Phillips, General Manager is authorized to sign the application, accept a grant award, purchase 
vehicles/equipment and/or expend grant funds pursuant to a grant award, unless specifically rescinded. 
 
DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 16th DAY OF JULY 2025 

By 

 
 
Signature, Chairperson of the Board  

Commissioner Sara Roberts McCarley, Board Chair   
 
ATTEST: 

  __________________                                                        Ella Joseph, Executive Assistant 

17



   
CITRUS CONNECTION 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Wednesday, July 16th, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM #4f 

 
 

 
 
Agenda Item: Proposed FY 2025-26 Millage Rate / Certificate of Taxable 

Value 
 
Presenter: Rhonda Carter, Chief Financial Officer 
  
Recommended  
Action: Approval of the proposed aggregate millage rate of .5000 mills 

and for the FY 2025-26 Millage and Budget Public Hearings. 
 
 Millage: 
 Proposed Millage rate     .5000 
 
 Current Year Aggregate    .4817 
 rolled-back rate 
  
 Current year proposed rate as a percent   3.80% 
 change of rolled-back rate 
 
 
 The DR-420, Certification of Taxable Value, is due to the 

Property Appraiser by Monday, August 4, 2025.  
 
 
 Public Hearings: 
 First Public Hearing: Wednesday, September 3, 2025 at 

5:01PM at Lakeland City Hall, City Commission Conference 
Room, 228 S. Massachusetts Ave., Lakeland. 

 
 Second Public Hearing: Wednesday, September 17, 2025 at 

5:01PM at Lakeland City Hall, City Commission Conference 
Room, 228 S. Massachusetts Ave., Lakeland. 

 
Attachments: Form DR-420, Certification of Taxable Value 
 
 

18



19



20



21



   
CITRUS CONNECTION 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Wednesday, July 16th, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM #4g 

 
 

 
 
Agenda Item: Purchase of four (4) 2026 Chevy Equinox Vehicles for 

Administrative use to support the overall Operations and 
Management of the District. 

 
Presenter: Rhonda Carter, Chief Financial Officer 
  
Recommended  
Action: Recommend Board approve the Purchase of (4) four 

administrative vehicles.  
 
Funding Source:  Funding is available to support this request utilizing FTA 5307 

Grants [FL-2022-011 and FL-2022-016] 
 
 
Summary: The requested vehicles will be utilized by Administrative Staff. 

Currently Administrative Staff are utilizing rental vehicles to 
meet their frequent transportation needs and field services. 
The requested vehicles will replace the use of the rental 
vehicles. The four (4) Chevy Equinox Vehicles are available 
under the Sourcewell Contract #2025 091521-NAF & 032824-
NAF via Alan Jay Fleet Sales. 

 
 Equinox Cost: $29,574.00 Each 
 Extended Total: $118,296.00 
 
Attachments: See attached 

22



   
CITRUS CONNECTION 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Wednesday, July 16th, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM #4h 

 
 

 
 
Agenda Item: Amendment to the Procurement and Contracts Policy 

Manual 
 
Presenter: Todd Morrow, Procurement and Contracts Manager 
  
Recommended  
Action: Recommend Board approve Amendment 9, of the Procurement 

and Contracts Policy Manual. 
 
Anticipated  
Funding Source:  None 
 
 
Summary: The District procurement policies have historically followed 

that of the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) procurement 
regulations, as described in the Federal Acquisition 
Regulations (FAR) and Third-Party Contracting Guidance.  

 
 Though procurement regulations and requirements have not 

changed, we seek to incorporate the need for clear and 
accurate description of the technical requirements for 
materials, products, or services to be procured. Solicitation 
and Procurement Documents will identify all requirements 
which offerors must fulfill and all other factors to be used in 
evaluating bids or proposals. Offerors must be Responsible 
and Responsive to considered for award. Factors such as 
Qualifications; Technical Capabilities; and Price will be used in 
evaluating bids or proposals.  

 
 Such additions to the Procurement and Contracts Policy 

Manual are found in Section 3.01 Technical Requirements for 
Award and 3.02 Evaluation Requirements for Award. 

 
 This amendment does not conflict with FTA; FAR; C4220.1G or 

FDOT requirements or clauses. 
 
Attachments: See attached 

23



   
CITRUS CONNECTION 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Wednesday, July 16th, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM #4i 

 
 

 
 
Agenda Item: Amendment to the LAMTD Standard of Conduct 
 
Presenter: Todd Morrow, Procurement and Contract Manager 
  
Recommended  
Action: Recommend Board approve changes to the LAMTD Standard of 

Conduct for Purchasing Department Employees. 
 
Summary: The District procurement policies have historically followed 

that of the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) procurement 
regulations, as described in the Federal Acquisition 
Regulations (FAR) and Third-Party Contracting Guidance.  

 
 Though procurement regulations and requirements have not 

changed, we seek to incorporate the need for disciplinary 
actions for conflict of interest violations in our written 
standards of conduct.  

 
 Areas of the modifications are as follows: 
 
 First Offense: Warning with Mandatory Counseling to reinforce 

ethical standards and prevent future violations.  
 
 Continued Offense: Increasing disciplinary actions contingent 

on the severity that may result in suspension; demotion; 
termination; or legal action against the individual.  

 
 These changes do not conflict with FTA; FAR; C4220.1G or 

FDOT requirements or clauses. 
 
 Approval of the standard of conduct change(s) will enhance 

the District’s ability to meet internal customer requests and 
will increase our administrative efficiency. 

 
 
Attachments: LAMTD Written Standards of Conduct 
 

24



   
CITRUS CONNECTION 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Wednesday, July 16th, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM #5a 

 
 

 
 
Agenda Item: Polk State College Agreement 
 
Presenter: Ben Darby, Esq 
  
Recommended  
Action: Approval of the Agreement  
 
Summary: Polk State College Universal Access Program Agreement 
 
Attachments: See attachments  

25



   
CITRUS CONNECTION 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Wednesday, July 16th, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM #5b 

 
 

 
 
Agenda Item: Annual Certifications and Assurances 
 
Presenter: Ben Darby, Esq 
  
Recommended  
Action: Staff recommend the board approve General Manager Tom 

Phillips and Attorney Ben Darby to sign and pin the 2025 FTA 
Certifications and Assurances. 

 
Summary: Every year all transit systems are required to accept the FTA 

Certs and Assurances for the current fiscal year. This process 
is completed utilizing the FTA reporting system TrAMS. 

 
Attachments: Annual Certifications and Assurances 

26



   
CITRUS CONNECTION 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Wednesday, July 16th, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM #6a 

 
 

 
 
Agenda Item: Social Media Platforms Content 
 
Presenter: Kendra Brown, Community Engagement Specialist 
 Felicia McCleary, Procurement/Marketing Intern 
  
Recommended  
Action: None 
 
Summary: Creating engaging content for Social Media platforms 
 
Attachments: See attachments  

27



   
CITRUS CONNECTION 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Wednesday, July 16th, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM #7a 

 
 

 
 
Agenda Item: Agency Updates 
 
Presenter: Tom Phillips, General Manager 
  
Recommended  
Action: None 
 
Summary: Items and information from the General Manager 
 
Attachments: None 

28



   
CITRUS CONNECTION 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Wednesday, July 16th, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM #8a 

 
 

 
 
Agenda Item: July Calendar 
 
Presenter: Tom Phillips, General Manager 
  
Recommended  
Action: None 
 
Summary: Review and summary of events taken place in July 
 
Attachments: See attachments  

29



���������	
���
������������� ������ ������� ��������� ��� ���� ! "��� ��#� ���$%&�' ( ) * + , -
. / '0 '' '( ') '*
'+ ', '- '. '/ (0 ('
(( () (* (+ (, (- (.
(/ )0 $%1�' ( ) * +

23�45678976�:;<= > ?@A3�45BC9D8E�BFGHH�IGJ> I8KLM�N8GEO�8H�PDECQF8ERS�TCEH8EUG9QC�V9ODQGF8E�PGFGS�>23@A3�45<WEEDQG9C�TECRC9 23�45678976�:;XGEQDG> ?@A3�45678976�:;�YDQ8JC> 23�456M6�:;=Z89OG >22�45678976�:;[9G > 2�\5]̂EG_�̀W9OGUC9FGJR� 2@A3�\5N8GEO�=CFECGF�=CaD
23�45678976�:;<= > b�45cdce�IDFEWR�I899CQFD ?@A3�45678976�:;�YDQ8JC> f�45=CKGFZG > A@A3�\5PDRQWRR�OCUG9O�JC J̀Gg�PGL22�45678976�:;[9G > f�45IDFEWR�I899CQFD89�hW ?�45T8J_�̂T]�F8�i[KKEjklmn�opqrstu�vtwxyz{t|} 23�456M6�:;=Z89OG >?@A3�45BC9D8E�BFGHH�IGJ>23�45678976�:;XGEQDG>
23�45678976�:;<= > ?�45IDFEWR�I899CQFD89~j ?@A3�45678976�:;�YDQ8JC> 23�456M6�:;=Z89OG > 2��\5T8J_�̂T]~R��=̂T�Tj22�45678976�:;[9G > ?@A3�45BC9D8E�BFGHH�IGJ�2@A3�\5T8J_�̂P��IN�UCj 23�45678976�:;XGEQDG>
23�45678976�:;<= > ?@A3�45BC9D8E�BFGHH�IGJ> ?@A3�45678976�:;�YDQ8JC> f�45=CKGFZG > f@A3�45�KOGFCO�D9aDF>j22�45678976�:;[9G > 23�45678976�:;XGEQDG> 23�456M6�:;=Z89OG >
23�45678976�:;<= > ?@A3�45BC9D8E�BFGHH�IGJ> ?@A3�45678976�:;�YDQ8JC> I8KLM�N8GEO�8H�PDECQF8ERS�TCEH8EUG9QC�V9ODQGF8E�PGFGS�>22�45678976�:;[9G > 23�45678976�:;XGEQDG> 23�456M6�:;=Z89OG > V9OCKC9OC9QC�PGL22�45IDFEWR�I899CQFD89;�22�45 �̀M��GWEC9�[J�GWU

30



   
CITRUS CONNECTION 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Wednesday, July 16th, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM #8b 

 
 

 
 
Agenda Item: Ridership Report 
 
Presenter: Tom Phillips, General Manager 
  
Recommended  
Action: None 
 
Summary: June 2025 ridership information 
 
Attachments: Citrus Connection Ridership Report June 2025 

31



   
CITRUS CONNECTION 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Wednesday, July 16th, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM #9 

 
 

 
 
Agenda Item: Other Business 
 
Presenter: TBD 
  
Recommended  
Action: TBD 
  
Summary: TBD 
 
Attachments: TBD 
  
  
 
 
 

 

32



CITRUS CONNECTION 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

 
Meeting Minutes 

Lake Crago 
525 Lake Crago Dr, Lakeland, FL 33805 
Tuesday, June 10th, 2025 at 8:00 a.m. 

 
 

Board Members Present 
City of Lakeland Commissioner Sara Roberts McCarley (Chair) 
Polk County Commissioner Martha Santiago (Vice-Chair) 
City of Lakeland Commissioner Guy Lalonde Jr (Secretary) 
City of Lakeland Mayor Bill Mutz 
Polk County Commissioner Becky Troutman 
 
Board Members Absent 
 
Executive Director: Tom Phillips 
Chief Financial Officer: Rhonda Carter 
Executive Coordinator: Ella Joseph 
 
 

Call to Order 
8:30 a.m. By Commissioner McCarley 
 

 
Agenda Item #1 – Approval of the Minutes 
a. Board approval of the May 2025 Citrus Connection Meeting Minutes 
    

[Attachments available] 
 

 
“Approval of meeting minutes for the May 2025 Citrus Connection Meeting Minutes” 
1st Martha Santiago/ 2nd Becky Troutman 

 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY   

 
 
 

Agenda Item #2 – Public Comment  
None 

 
 

Agenda Item #3 – Finance / Rhonda Carter, CFO  
 
a. State Corridor Grant, Resolution 25-14 

 
These funds will be utilized to assist the District with administrative, management, and 
operation expenses necessary to provide public transportation services to the citizens of 
Polk County.   

33



CITRUS CONNECTION 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

 
Meeting Minutes 

Lake Crago 
525 Lake Crago Dr, Lakeland, FL 33805 
Tuesday, June 10th, 2025 at 8:00 a.m. 

 
  

 The FDOT funding to LAMTD for this project is $150,577 with matching funds 
provided by the District, as shown below. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

[Attachments available] 
 

 
“Approval of the 2025/2026 PTGA for the utilization of FDOT State Transit Corridor 
Grant Program funds totaling $301,154 in support of the Peach Line.” 
1st Guy Lalonde / 2nd Bill Mutz 

 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
 
 

b. TD Trust Fund, Resolution 25-15 
The State Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged (CTD) administers the State 
Transportation Disadvantaged Trust Fund. The primary purpose of the trust fund is to 
provide transportation for the Transportation Disadvantaged County residents who have no 
other means of transportation or are not sponsored for that need by any other available 
funding source.   

 
 

[Attachments available] 
 

 
“Approval of the annual Operating Budget for the period of July 1st 2025 through June 
30th 2026.” 
1st Martha Santiago / 2nd Becky Troutman 

 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
 

State Funding  $       150,577 

LAMTD Match  $       150,577  

Total Funding  $       301,154 

34



CITRUS CONNECTION 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Meeting Minutes 
Lake Crago 

525 Lake Crago Dr, Lakeland, FL 33805 
Tuesday, June 10th, 2025 at 8:00 a.m. 

Agenda Item #4 – General Manager Report / Tom Phillips, General Manager 

a. Agency Updates
- County Budget is less than 3% increase
- Transit was spared for not being able to collect Unions Dues, but now can’t
- July 16th is our next Board Meeting, 3rd Wednesday.

Agenda Item #5 – Other Business 

Adjournment at 8:35 a.m. 

Approved this 16th day of July 2025. 

_______________________________________   ____________________________ 
Chair – Lakeland City Commissioner Sara Roberts McCarley        Minutes Recorder – Ella Joseph 

35


	1a- AGENDA
	1a- Approval of CC Minutes
	3a- Agenda ITEM - LAMTD Financials
	3a- Financial Narrative LAMTD
	3a- LAMTD April 2025 Financials- working file
	3b- Agenda ITEM - PCTS Financials
	3b- PCTS Financial Narrative
	3b-  Financials PCTS Apr 2025
	3c- Agenda ITEM - TD Financials
	3c- TD Narrative
	3c- TD April 2025 Financials
	3d- Agenda ITEM - Winter Haven Resolution 25-19
	3d- Resolution 25-19, Winter Haven Super Grant
	RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING
	By
	ATTEST:


	3e- Agenda ITEM - Lakeland Resolution 25-20
	3e- Resolution 25-20, Lakeland Super Grant
	3f- Agenda ITEM - Proposed Millage Rate FY25-26
	3f- DR420_2025_755 (5)
	3g- Agenda ITEM - ADMIN Vehicles
	3g- 2 Alan Jay Fleet Sales - Quote Sheet - Sourcewell Contract 2025 091521-NAF and 032824-NAF
	3h- Agenda ITEM - Procurement Policy Update
	3h- Written Procurement Policies and Procedures Include Elements Required by 2 CFR 200.319(d) 7-16-25
	1.0 GENERAL PROVISIONS
	1.1 INTRODUCTION
	1.2 PURPOSE AND PRINCIPLE
	1.3 EXCLUSIONS
	1.4 PROCUREMENT AUTHORITY
	1.5 ADVANCED ACQUISITION PLANNING
	1.6 REQUISITIONS

	2.0 PROCUREMENT POLICIES
	2.0
	2.1 PETTY CASH (PURCHASES UNDER $50.00)
	2.2 DIRECT PAYMENTS
	2.3 MICRO-PURCHASES (PURCHASES UP TO $2,500)
	2.4 CAPITAL ASSETS
	2.5 SMALL PURCHASES (PURCHASES $2,500.00 UP TO $35,000)
	2.6 SEALED BID PROCESS “INVITATIONS FOR BID” (IFB) ($35,000.00 AND GREATER)
	2.7 REQUESTS FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) (OVER $35,000)
	2.8 NON-COMPETITIVE PROCUREMENTS (SOLE, SINGLE OR DIRECTED SOURCE)
	2.9 EMERGENCY PURCHASES (AUTHORIZATION AND CRITERIA)
	2.9.1 Authorization:
	2.9.2 Criteria for Emergency Purchases
	2.9.3 Natural Disaster Emergency Purchases

	2.10 PURCHASE CARD PROGRAM (PURPOSE AND REQUIREMENTS)
	2.10.1     Purpose of the Procurement Card Program
	2.10.2     Rules and Requirements
	2.10.3     Spending Limits

	2.11 Procurement of Ancillary Services

	3.0 APPROVAL OF AWARDS, DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY
	3.0
	3.1 REJECTION OF BIDS/ PROPOSALS
	3.2 EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS
	3.3 CHANGE ORDERS, MODIFICATIONS OR AMENDMENTS

	4.0 PROTEST POLICY
	3.0
	4.0
	4.1 PROTEST
	4.2 SUSPENSION OF THE PROCUREMENT PROCESS
	4.3 RESOLUTION OF PROTEST
	4.4 APPEAL OF DECISION
	4.5 BREACHES AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION
	4.5.1 Applicability to Contracts
	4.5.2 References


	5.0 CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS
	5.0
	5.1 DOCUMENTATION FILES
	5.2 CONTRACT AUDIT AND REVIEW

	6.0 STANDARDS OF CONDUCT
	6.0
	6.1 GOVERNANCE

	7.0 CONFIRMATION PURCHASE/ UNAUTHORIZED PURCHASE

	3i- Agenda ITEM - Amendment to LAMTD Standard of Conduct
	3i- Written Standards of Conduct_Including Disciplinary Actions for Conflict of Interest Violations
	4a- Agenda ITEM - Polk State College UAP
	4a- PSC Contract
	Service Agreement -
	IF THE DISTRICT HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO DISTRICT’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS, Cindy Baker, AT

	4b- Agenda ITEM - Annual Certifications and Assuracnes
	4b- Certs & Assurances 2025 Board Pack
	5a- Agenda ITEM - Social Media Content
	5a- Social Media Powerpoint - PDF
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7

	6a- Agenda ITEM - Agency Updates
	7a- Agenda ITEM - July Calendar
	July Calendar
	7b- Agenda ITEM - June 2025 Ridership
	Ridership Report June
	Citrus Connection Ridership Report �June 2025
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5

	8- Agenda ITEM - Other Business
	ADP284A.tmp
	UBoard Members Present
	UBoard Members Absent
	UCall to Order
	UAgenda Item #1 – Approval of the Minutes
	MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY




